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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

To the Members of SHREE SECURITIES LIMITED  
 
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SHREE SECURITIES LIMITED 
(“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (the ‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial 
position) of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and profit/loss (financial performance) and 
its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and 
informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
 
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

31



  
 

R. K. KANKARIA & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

33, BRABOURNE ROAD, 3RD FLOOR, 

KOLKATA -700 001 

Phone : 2242-5812, 9836121421 (O) 

E-mail : rajesh.kankaria@gmail.com 

 

 

 

 

 

SN Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response 

1 Revenue Recognition and NPA 
Refer note 1, 14 and 3 of accompanied 
financial statements. 
The Company has to comply with 
prudential norms relating to income 
recognition, accounting standards, asset 
classification and provisioning for bad 
and doubtful debts as applicable to it in 
the terms of NBFC – Non Systemically 
Important Non Deposit taking company 
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. 

Our procedures included, but were not 
limited to the following: 

 Obtained an understanding of 
management’s process and evaluated 
design and tested operating 
effectiveness of controls around 
compliance with prudential norms 
encompassing income recognition, 
income from investments, accounting 
standards, accounting for 
investments, asset classification, 
provisioning for bad and doubtful 
debts in the terms of Directions. 

 Examination of whether the 
management has framed and 
implemented policy for grant and 
demand of loans and other credit 
facilities. 

 Examination of whether advances 
and other credit facilities have been 
properly classified as standard/sub 
standard/doubtful/loss and that 
proper provision has been made in 
accordance with the Directions. 

 Examination in respect of a Non-
Performing Assets, whether the 
unrealised income in respect of such 
assets has not been taken to the 
Profit & Loss Account on accrual 
basis.  

 Examination of whether all accounts 
which have been classified as NPAs in 
the previous year also continue to be 
shown as such in the current year 
also. If the same is not treated as a 
NPA in the current year, specific 
examination of such accounts to 
ascertain whether the account has 
become regular and the same can be 
treated as performing as per the 
Directions. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s 
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon.  

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the   financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of 
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so.  

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial 
reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
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assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
 
b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
 
c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement 

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 
 
d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.  

 
e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 

March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act.  

 
f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure-B”. Our report expresses an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company’s internal 
financial controls over financial reporting. 
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g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with the requirements of section 197 of the Act, as amended: 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is 

in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impacts its 

financial position in its financial statements; 
 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
 

iv.  
a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 

no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company 
to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
no funds have been received by the company from any person or entity, 
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and 

c. Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause 
(a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 
 

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in 
contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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3. As required by the “Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditors Report (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 1998”, we further state that we have submitted a Report to the Board of 
Directors of the Company containing a statement on the matters of supervisory concern 
to the Reserve Bank of India as specified in the said  directions, namely the following: 
 
a. Company has been granted certificate of registration as NBFC by Reserve Bank of India 

and the Registration No. 05.00571 dated 03.03.1998. 
 

b. The Board of Directors of the Company has passed a Resolution for non-acceptance of 
any public deposits. The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the 
year under reference. 
 

c. The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, 
accounting standards, asset classification and provisioning of bad doubtful debts as 
applicable to it. 

 
For R. K. KANKARIA & CO. 

Chartered Accountants                                                                                                                           

Firm Reg. No. : 321093E 

 

 

 

R. K. KANKARIA 

Partner 

M. No: 082796 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 27-05-2022 

 

UDIN: 22082796AJTAGD5584 
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

(Referred to in Para 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date) 
 

I. In respect Paragraph 3(i) of the Order for Property, Plant and Equipment: 
(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 
(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company are physically verified by the 

management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on 
such verification. In our opinion the periodicity of the physical verifications are 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not 
have immovable property. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable 
on the Company.. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or 
intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is 
not applicable on the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been 
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 
thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

 
II. In respect Paragraph 3(ii) of the Order for Inventories: 

The Company does not hold any inventory within the meaning of inventories, as defined 
in Accounting Standard -2. So in our opinion, Paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not applicable 
to the Company. 
 

III. In respect Paragraph 3(iii) of the Order: 
(a) The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company whose principal business is to give 

loans. Hence, paragraph 3(iii)(a) is not applicable to the company. 
(b) The loans and advances given by the Company and the terms and conditions of such 

loans are not prejudicial to the interest of the company. 
(c) In absence of any stipulation of repayment of principal and payment of interest we are 

unable to make any comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and interest. 
(d) In absence of any stipulation of repayment of principal and payment of interest we are 

unable to make any comment on whether the said loans and advances are overdue for 
more than ninety days or not. 

(e) No loans and advances in the nature of loans granted which has fallen due, has been 
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle existing loans to the same 
parties. 

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either 
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to 
Promoters, related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 
2013 
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IV. The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company and it has complied with the provisions 
of section 185 & 186 of the Act, to the extent applicable to the Company. 
 

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) 
of the Order is not applicable on the Company. 
 

VI. The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under section 148 
(1) of the Act for any of the goods or services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable on the Company. 
 

VII. In respect of Paragraph 3(vii) for statutory dues: 
(a) According to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including Goods 

and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other 
statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited to the appropriate 
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as on last day of 
the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable. 

(b) There are no dues in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax or duty of customs 
or duty of excise or value added tax or GST that have not been deposited with the 
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. 
 

VIII. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no such transactions 
which have not been recorded in the books of account and have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (43 of 1961). Kindly refer Note No. 26 of the Financial Statements. 
 

IX. In respect of Paragraph 3(ix): 
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 

defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest 
thereon to any lender. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 3(ix)(a) of the Order is 
not applicable on the Company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been 
declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 
Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 3(ix)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
taken any term loan from any bank or financial institution or others. Accordingly, the 
provision of paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, no such instances have 
been noticed wherein funds raised on short term basis have been utilized for long 
term purposes. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of 
its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 
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(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint 
ventures or associate companies. 
 

X. In respect of Paragraph 3(x): 
(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public 

offer (including debt instruments) and term loan during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable on the Company. 

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable on the Company. 

 
XI. In respect of Paragraph 3(xi): 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company 
or any material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed 
by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower 
complaints have been received by the company during the year. 

 
XII. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of The Order is not 

applicable on the Company. 
 

XIII. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance 
with the provision of section 177 & 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such 
transactions have been disclosed in the notes to financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 
 

XIV. In respect of Paragraph 3(xiv): 
a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit 

system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 
b) We have considered internal audit reports issued by internal auditors during our audit. 
 

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him, so the 
provisions of section 192 of the Act is not required to be complied with. 
 

XVI. In respect of Paragraph 3(xvi): 
(a) Company has been granted certificate of registration as NBFC by Reserve Bank of 

India under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the Registration 
No. Registration No. 05.00571 dated 03.03.1998. 

(b) Company has been granted certificate of registration as NBFC by Reserve Bank of 
India under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the Registration 
No. Registration No. 05.00571 dated 03.03.1998 for conducting Non-Banking 
Financial activities. However the company has not conducted any Non-Banking 
Housing Finance activities. 
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(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India. 

(d) The Group has no CIC as part of the Group. 
 

XVII. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year under review and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvii) of the Order is not 
applicable on the Company. 
 

XVIII. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable on the Company. 
 

XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of 
the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that 
company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. 
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report 
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as 
and when they fall due. 
 

XX. Section 135 of the Act related to Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable on the 
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable on 
the Company. 
 

XXI. The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture and hence not 
required to prepare a Consolidated Financial Statement. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xxi) of 
the Order is not applicable on the Company. 

 
For R. K. KANKARIA & CO. 

Chartered Accountants                                                                                                                           

Firm Reg. No. : 321093E 

 

 

 

R. K. KANKARIA 

Partner 

M. No: 082796 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 27-05-2022 

 

UDIN: 22082796AJTAGD5584 
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS OF SHREE SECURITIES LIMITED 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

To the members of M/s. SHREE SECURITIES LIMITED 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. SHREE 
SECURITIES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and 
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 

audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 

of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error. 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting. 

 

42



  
 

R. K. KANKARIA & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

33, BRABOURNE ROAD, 3RD FLOOR, 

KOLKATA -700 001 

Phone : 2242-5812, 9836121421 (O) 

E-mail : rajesh.kankaria@gmail.com 

 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that:      
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and  

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 

the financial statements. 
 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 
 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

For R. K. KANKARIA & CO. 

Chartered Accountants                                                                                                                           

Firm Reg. No. : 321093E 
 

 

 

 

R. K. KANKARIA 

Partner 

M. No: 082796 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 27-05-2022 

 

UDIN: 22082796AJTAGD5584 
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(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Sr. No Particulars Note No.  As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021 

ASSETS

 (1) Financial Assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4                                 15,169.07                                      11,914.62 

(b) Bank Balance other than (a) above

            (c) Derivative financial instruments

Receivables

(I) Trade Receivables

(II) Other Receivables

(e) Loans 5                                 52,236.40                                      52,713.82 

(f) Investments 6 1,87,010.67                            1,54,073.66                                 

 (g) Other Financial assets (to be specified)

 (2) Non-financial Assets

             (a) Inventories

(b) Current tax assets (Net) 7                                       804.86                                            593.27 

         (c) Deferred tax Assets (Net) 8                                                -                                                       -   

(d) Investment Property

  (e) Biological assets other than bearer plants

         (f) Property, Plant and Equipment 9                                           2.02                                                2.02 

(g) Capital work-in-progress

(h) Intangible assets under development

        (i) Goodwill

(j) Other Intangible assets

    (k) Other non -financial assets (to be specified)

Total Assets                             2,55,223.02                                  2,19,297.38 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

(1) Financial Liabilities

(a) Derivative financial instruments

(b) Payables

(I)Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises

(II) Other Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises

(c) Debt Securities

  (d) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

(e) Deposits

        (f) Subordinated Liabilities

        (g) Other financial liabilities(to be specified)

(2) Non-Financial Liabilities

(a) Current tax liabilities (Net)

(b) Provisions 10(a)                                   3,626.83                                        3,628.02 

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 9                                                -                                                       -   

(d) Other non-financial liabilities(to be specified) 10(b)                                         34.54                                              72.88 

EQUITY

(a)  Equity Share capital 11                              7,98,000.00                                   7,98,000.00 

(b)  Other Equity 12                            (5,46,438.35)                                 (5,82,403.53)

Total Liabilities and Equity                             2,55,223.02                                  2,19,297.38 
Summary of significant accounting policies See accompanying notes forming part of the

Financial Statements 1-35

As per our Report of even date. 

FOR R K KANKARIA & CO

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No : 321093E

Sd/- Sd/-

Shiwaginee Jaiswal

Director

Sd/- DIN: 08763022

CA. RAJESH KUMAR KANKARIA

(Partner)

M. No. : 082796 Sd/- Sd/-

Raksha Kumari Sunil Gopi Chandra

Dated: 27.05.2022 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place :Kolkata ACS :46084

UDIN:22082796AJTAGD5584

SHREE SECURITIES LIMITED

CIN:L65929WB1994PLC061930 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

(d)

DIN:09542964

Managing Director

3, Synagogue Street, 3rd Floor, Room No. 18G, Kolkata 700 001, West Bengal.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Shree Securities Limited

Bhavya Dhiman

44



Sr. No Particulars Note No.
For the year ended 

31.03.2022

For the year ended 

31.03.2021

Revenue from operations

(i) Interest Income 13                     4,666.17                         4,167.98 

(ii) Dividend Income

(iii) Rental Income

(iv) Fees and commission Income

(v) Net gain on fair value changes 14                                  -                                        -   

(vi)
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost

category

(vii) Sale of products(including Excise Duty)

(viii) Sale of services

(ix) Others (to be specified)                                  -                                        -   

(I) Total Revenue from operations                     4,666.17                         4,167.98 

(II) Other Income (to be specified) 15                           49.25                            101.78 

(III) Total Income (I+II)                     4,715.42                         4,269.75 

Expenses

(i) Finance Costs

(ii) Fees and commission expense

(iii) Net loss on fair value changes 14                                  -                           2,259.56 

(iv)
Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost

category

(v) Impairment on financial instruments

(vi) Cost of materials consumed

(vii) Purchases of Stock -in -trade

(viii)
Changes in Inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work -in -

progress

(ix) Employee Benefits Expenses 16                         570.00                            734.00 

(x) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 9                                  -                                        -   

(xi) Others expenses 17                     1,118.44                         1,707.49 

(IV) Total Expenses (IV)                     1,688.44                         4,701.05 

(V) Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (III - IV)                     3,026.98                           (431.29)

(VI) Exceptional items                                  -                                        -   

(VII) Profit/(loss) before tax (V -VI)                     3,026.98                           (431.29)

Tax Expense:

(1) Current Tax                                      -   

(2) Deferred Tax                                      -   

(IX) Profit / (loss) for the period from continuing operations(VII-VIII)                     3,026.98                           (431.29)

(X) Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations                                  -                                        -   

(XI) Tax Expense of discontinued operations                                  -                                        -   

(XII) Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations(After tax) (X-XI)                                  -                                        -   

(XIII ) Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII)                     3,026.98                          (431.29)

(XIV) Other Comprehensive Income

(A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (specify items and

amounts)                   32,937.00                       11,102.79 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or

loss                                  -                                        -   

Subtotal (A)                   32,937.00                       11,102.79 

(B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (specify items and

amounts)                                  -                                        -   

       (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

                                 -                                        -   

Subtotal (B)                                  -                                        -   

Other Comprehensive Income (A + B)                   32,937.00                       11,102.79 

(XV)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV) (Comprising Profit

(Loss) and other Comprehensive Income for the period)                   35,963.98                       10,671.49 

(XVI) Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations)

(VIII)

PROFIT AND LOSS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

SHREE SECURITIES LIMITED
3, Synagogue Street, 3rd Floor, Room No. 18G, Kolkata 700 001, West Bengal.

CIN:L65929WB1994PLC061930 

(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)
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Basic (Rs.)                           0.038                             (0.005)

Diluted (Rs.)                           0.038                             (0.005)

(XVII) Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operations)

Basic (Rs.)                                  -                                        -   

Diluted (Rs.)                                  -                                        -   

(XVIII )

Earnings per equity share (for continuing and discontinued operations)

Basic (Rs.)                           0.038                             (0.005)

Diluted (Rs.)                           0.038                             (0.005)

  See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-35

As per our Report of even date. 

FOR R K KANKARIA & CO

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No : 321093E

Sd/- Sd/-

Shiwaginee Jaiswal

Director

Sd/- DIN: 08763022

CA. RAJESH KUMAR KANKARIA

(Partner)

M. No. : 082796 Sd/- Sd/-

Raksha Kumari Sunil Gopi Chandra

Dated: 27.05.2022 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place :Kolkata ACS :46084

UDIN:22082796AJTAGD5584

Bhavya Dhiman

Managing Director

DIN:09542964

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Shree Securities Limited
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SN  Year Ended 31.03.2022  Year Ended 31.03.2021 

(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,026.98                               (431.29)                                 

Adjustment for:

Tax Expenses

Fixed Assets W/Off

Depreciation -                                      -                                         

Impairment of Asset carried at amortised cost or FVTOCI

Net Loss / (Gain) in Fair Value Changes through PorL -                                      -                                         

Liabilities no longer payable -                                      -                                         

Lending Fee on shares

Net Loss / (Gain) in Fair Value Changes through OCI after Tax

Dividend Paid

Interest Income on Investments

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 3,026.98                               (431.29)                                 

Adjustment for :-

Change in Other Financial Liabilities (38.34)                                    24.61                                     

Change in Trade Receivables/Other Receivable

Change in Other Financial Assets

 Loans and Advances Given  / Repaid 477.41                                   

Cash Generated from Operations 3,466.05                               (406.68)                                 

Less : Direct Taxes Paid (211.59)                                 1,772.81                               

Cash Inflow(+)/Outflow(-) before Extra Ordinary Items 3,254.46                               1,366.13                               

Add(+)/Deduct(-) Prior Period Adjustments

Net Cash Inflow(+)/Outflow(-) in Operating Activities 3,254.46                               1,366.13                               

(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Lending Fee on shares

Dividend Income

Loans and Advances Given -                                         10,431.49                             

Current Tax Asset(net) -                                         -                                         

Sale/ (Purchase) of Investments

Net Cash Inflow(+)/Outflow(-) in Investing Activities -                                         10,431.49                             

(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loan Taken

Net Cash Inflow(+)/Outflow(-) in Financing Activities

(D) NET INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 3,254.46                               11,797.62                             

(E) OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 11,914.62                             117.00                                   

(F) CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15,169.07                             11,914.62                             

As per our Report of even date. 

FOR R K KANKARIA & CO

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No : 321093E

Sd/- Sd/-

Shiwaginee Jaiswal

Director

Sd/- DIN: 08763022

CA. RAJESH KUMAR KANKARIA

(Partner)

M. No. : 082796 Sd/- Sd/-

Raksha Kumari Sunil Gopi Chandra

Dated: 27.05.2022 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place :Kolkata ACS :46084

UDIN:22082796AJTAGD5584

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

Particulars

SHREE SECURITIES LIMITED
3, Synagogue Street, 3rd Floor, Room No. 18G, Kolkata 700 001, West Bengal.

CIN:L65929WB1994PLC061930 

Cash Flow Statement For the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Shree Securities Limited

Bhavya Dhiman

Managing Director

DIN:09542964
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 AND COMPARATIVE PERIOD
(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

a) Equity Share Capital

Amount
Balance as at March 31, 2021 7,98,000.00       

Issue of Equity shares -                      

Balance as at March 31, 2022 7,98,000.00       

b)           (i) Other Equity for year ended March 31st, 2022

Special 

Reserve (RBI)

Amalgamation 

Reserve

Retained 

Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 535.92                1,61,134.33         (8,798.56)               (7,35,275.22)                   (5,82,403.53)      

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors -                      -                        -                          -                                    -                       

Restated balance at the begining of the reporting period 535.92                1,61,134.33         (8,798.56)               (7,35,275.22)                   (5,82,403.53)      

Total comprehensive Income for the year -                      -                        3,026.98                32,937.00                        35,963.98           

Contingent Provision for Standard Assets -                      -                        1.19                        -                                    1.19                     

Transfer to retained earnings -                      -                        -                          -                                    -                       

Transfer to Statutory Reserve 605.40                -                        (605.40)                  -                                    -                       

Balance at the end of the reporting period 1,141.31            1,61,134.33         (6,375.78)               (7,02,338.21)                   (5,46,438.35)      

              (ii) Other Equity for year ended March 31st, 2021

Special 

Reserve (RBI)

Amalgamation 

Reserve

Retained 

Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 535.92                1,61,134.33         (8,393.34)               (7,46,378.00)                   (5,93,101.10)      

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors

Restated balance at the begining of the reporting period 535.92                1,61,134.33         (8,393.34)               (7,46,378.00)                   (5,93,101.10)      

Total comprehensive Income for the year (431.29)                  11,102.79                        10,671.49           

Contingent Provision for Standard Assets -                      -                        -                          -                                    -                       

Transfer to retained earnings -                      -                        26.08                      -                                    26.08                   

Transfer to Statutory Reserve -                      -                        -                          -                                    -                       

Balance at the end of the reporting period 535.92                1,61,134.33         (8,798.56)               (7,35,275.22)                   (5,82,403.53)      

Particulars 

Particulars

Total 

Total 
Fair Valuation of 

Equity Investments

Fair Valuation of 

Equity Investments
Particulars
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i. 

ii.

iii. Basis of preparation and presentation

iv. Use of estimates and judgements

The Company was incorporated on 23rd February, 1994 vide Corporate Identity No. L65929WB1994PLC061930 with the object to carry on

the business of Finance and Investment in Shares and Securities.

The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the Company to make judgements, assumptions and estimates that

affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial

statements and reported amounts of income and expenses for the reporting period. The application of accounting policies that require

critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in the financial statements have been

disclosed as applicable in the respective notes to accounts. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Future results could

differ from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances

surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if

material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Judgements:

 Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have a most significant effect on the amount recognised in the 

financial statements is included following Notes:

             -classification of financial assets: assessment of the business model within which the assets are held and  assessment of whether the 

contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment during the year

ending March 31, 2020 is included in the following Notes: - 

Note (10) - useful life of property, plant, equipment and intangibles.  

Note (9) - recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which carry forward deferred tax asset can be set

off. 

Note (22) - determination of the fair value of financial instruments with significant unobservable inputs.

M/s Shree Securities Ltd. stands as a professionally managed company wherein the overall management is vested in the Board of Directors,

comprised of experienced persons in varied facets of the sector. 

Statement of compliance 

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards

(referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The Company has adopted Ind AS from

April 1, 2019 with effective transition date as April 1, 2018. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as

notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”). The

transition was carried out from Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule

7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (“IGAAP” or “previous GAAP”). An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the

previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in Note no 3.

Presentation of financial statements 

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income) and Statement of changes in Equity are prepared

and presented in the format prescribed in the Division III of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Statement of Cash

Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS. Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian

Rupees.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair

value at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below. 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services at the time of entering into

the transaction.

Measurement of fair values: 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation

technique. 

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes for certain items in these financial statements is determined considering following

methods: Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair

value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

a) Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access at

measurement date 

b) Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and 

c) Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities that the Company can access at measurement date. For

details relating to valuation model and framework used for fair value measurement and disclosure of financial instrument refer to note 22.

Items Measurement Basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Property, plant and equipment Value in use under Ind AS 36
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v.

vi.

vii.

a) Financial assets

Classification 

On initial recognition, depending on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and its contractual cash flow

characteristics, a financial asset is classified as measured at:

1) amortised cost; 

2) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); or 

3) fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment during the year

ending March 31, 2020 is included in the following Notes: - 

Note (10) - useful life of property, plant, equipment and intangibles.  

Note (9) - recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which carry forward deferred tax asset can be set

off. 

Note (22) - determination of the fair value of financial instruments with significant unobservable inputs.

Interest 

Interest consists of consideration for (i) the time value of money; (ii) for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding;(iii)

for other basic lending risks and costs; and (iv) profit margin.

Interest income and expense are recognised using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly

discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial

asset or amortised cost of the financial liability.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid or received that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a

financial asset or liability.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of noncredit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the

amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets the

interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the creditimpaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the

financial asset after adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance (ECLs)). The Company assesses the collectability of the interest on

credit impaired assets at each reporting date. Based on the outcome of such assessment, the interest income accrued on credit impaired

financial assets are either accounted for as income or written off as per the write off policy of the Company.

 

The interest cost is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the financial liability. 

The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured on

initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any

difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance. 

The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss

allowance.

Dividend Income 

Income from dividend on investment in equity and preference shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual funds are accounted when

received or on accrual basis when such dividends have been declared by the corporate bodies in their annual general meetings and the CIC’s

right to receive payment is established.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet on trade date when the Company becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument. A loan is recorded upon remittance of the funds to the counterparty/obligor. Recognised

financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs and revenues that are directly attributable to

the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at Fair Value Through

Profit and Loss (“FVTPL”) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial

recognition. Transaction costs and revenues directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are

recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss. 

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Company will account for such difference as follows: 

a) if fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses

only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition (i.e. day 1 profit or loss);

b) in all other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction price (i.e. day 1 profit or loss will be deferred by

including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset or liability). 

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to profit or loss on a rational basis, only to the extent that it arises from a

change in a factor (including time) that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability
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Initial recognition and measurement

A financial asset is recognised on trade date initially at cost of acquisition net of transaction cost and income that is attributable to the

acquisition of the financial asset. Cost equates the fair value on acquisition. A financial asset measured at amortised cost and a financial

asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is presented at gross carrying value in the Financial Statements.

Unamortised transaction cost and incomes and impairment allowance on financial asset is shown separately under the heading “Other non-

financial asset”, “Other non-financial liability” and “Provisions” respectively.

Assessment of Business model 

An assessment of the applicable business model for managing financial assets is fundamental to the classification of a financial asset. The

Company determines the business models at a level that reflects how financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business

objective. The Company’s business model does not depend on management’s intentions for an individual instrument, therefore the business

model assessment is performed at a higher level of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The Company could have

more than one business model for managing its financial instruments which reflect how the Company manages its financial assets in order

to generate cash flows. The Company’s business models determine whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,

selling financial assets or both. The Company considers all relevant information available when making the business model assessment. The

Company takes into account all relevant evidence available such as: 

1) how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the

entity’s key management personnel and board of directors; 

2) the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in particular,

the way in which those risks are managed; and 

3) how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on

the contractual cash flows collected). 

4) At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognised financial assets are part of an existing

business model or whether they reflect the commencement of a new business model. The Company reassesses its business models at each

reporting period to determine whether the business model/(s) have changed since the preceding period. For the current and prior reporting

period the Company has not identified a change in its business model. 

Based on the assessment of the business models, the Company has identified the three following choices of classification of financial assets: 

a) Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows (“Asset held to collect

contractual cash-flows”), and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding (SPPI), are measured at amortised cost; 

b) Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the assets,

(“Contractual cash flows of Asset collected through hold and sell model”) and that have contractual cash flows that are SPPI, are

subsequently measured at FVTOCI. 

c) All other financial assets (e.g. managed on a fair value basis, or held for sale) and equity investments are subsequently measured at

FVTPL.

Financial asset at amortised cost

Amortised cost of financial asset is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an

integral part of the EIR. For the purpose of testing SPPI, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition. That principal

amount may change over the life of the financial asset (e.g. if there are repayments of principal). Contractual cash flows that do not

introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows on account of changes such as equity prices or commodity prices and

are related to a basic lending arrangement, do give rise to SPPI. An originated or an acquired financial asset can be a basic lending

arrangement irrespective of whether it is a loan in its legal form.

The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit and loss statement. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the

profit and loss statement.

Financial asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 

Loans & Advances:

After initial measurement, basis assessment of the business model as “Contractual cash flows of asset collected through hold and sell model

and SPPI”, & equity instruments such financial assets are classified to be measured at FVTOCI. Contractual cash flows that do introduce

exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows due to changes such as equity prices or commodity prices and are unrelated to a

basic lending arrangement, do not give rise to SPPI. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit and loss statement. The

losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit and loss statement. The carrying value of the financial asset is fair valued by

discounting the contractual cash flows over contractual tenure basis the internal rate of return of a new similar asset originated in the

month of reporting and such unrealised gain/loss is recorded in other comprehensive income (OCI). Where such a similar product is not

originated in the month of reporting, the closest product origination is used as a proxy. Upon sale of the financial asset, actual gain/loss

realised is recorded in the profit and loss statement and the unrealised gain/ loss recorded in OCI are recycled to the statement of profit and

loss.

Investments in equity instruments:

At initial recognition an entity at its sole option may irrevocably designate an investment in an equity instrument as FVOCI, unless the asset

is:

• Held for trading, or

• Contingent consideration in a business combination. 

Dividends are recognized when the entity’s right to receive payment is established, it is probable the economic benefits will flow to the

entity and the amount can be measured reliably. Dividends are recognized in profit and loss unless they clearly represent recovery of a part

of the cost of the investment, in which case they are included in OCI. Changes in fair value are recognized in OCI and are never recycled to

profit and loss, even if the asset is sold or impaired.
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viii. Impairment of Financial Asset

Impairment of Trade receivable and Operating lease receivable

Modification and De-recognition of financial assets

De-recognition of financial assets

Reclassifications within classes of financial assets 

A change in the business model would lead to a prospective re-classification of the financial asset and accordingly the measurement

principles applicable to the new classification will be applied. During the current financial year and previous accounting period there was no

change in the business model under which the Company holds financial assets and therefore no reclassifications were made.

Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

Financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization at amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. In addition, the

Company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as FVTPL. However, such election

is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and

loss.

Investment in equity, security receipt, mutual fund, non-cumulative redeemable preference shares and cumulative compulsorily

convertible preference shares 

Investment in equity, security receipt, mutual fund, non-cumulative redeemable preference shares and cumulative compulsorily convertible

preference shares are classified as FVTPL and measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Upon

initial recognition, the Company, on an instrument-by-instrument basis, may elect to classify equity instruments other than held for trading

either as FVTOCI or FVTPL. Such election is subsequently irrevocable. If FVTOCI is elected, all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding

dividends, are recognized in OCI. There is no recycling of the gains or losses from OCI to the statement of profit and loss, even upon sale of

investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within other equity upon realisation.

Impairment allowance on trade receivables is made on the basis of life time credit loss method, in addition to specific provision considering

the uncertainty of recoverability of certain receivables.

Modification of financial assets 

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or

otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the

contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date. The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to

maximise collection and minimise the risk of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all

reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default has already happened and the

borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of

the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due

(principal and interest forgiveness). Such accounts are classified as Stage 3 immediately upon such modification in the terms of the contract. 

Not all changes in terms of loans are considered as renegotiation and changes in terms of a class of obligors that are not overdue is not

considered as renegotiation and is not subjected to deterioration in staging.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when: 

1) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

2) the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the

Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to

recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Company is required to recognise Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) based on forward looking information for all financial assets at

amortised cost, lease receivables, debt financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, loan commitments and financial

guarantee contracts. No impairment loss is applicable on equity investments.

At the reporting date, an allowance (or provision for loan commitments and financial guarantees) is required on stage 1 assets at 12 month

ECLs. If the credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition (Stage 1), an allowance (or provision) should be recognised for the

lifetime ECLs for financial instruments for which the credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition (Stage 2) or which are credit impaired (Stage 3).

The measurement of ECL is calculated using three main components: (i) Probability of Default (PD) (ii) Loss Given Default (LGD) and (iii) the

Exposure At Default (EAD). The 12 month ECL is calculated by multiplying the 12 month PD, LGD and the EAD. The 12 month and lifetime PDs 

represent the PD occurring over the next 12 months and the remaining maturity

of the instrument respectively. The EAD represents the expected balance at default, taking into account the repayment of principal and

interest from the balance sheet date to the default event together with any expected drawdowns of committed facilities. The LGD

represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect of

collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the time value of money.

The Company applies a three-stage approach to measure ECL on financial assets accounted for at amortised cost and FVOCI. Assets migrate

through the following three stages based on the change in credit quality since initial recognition.
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Presentation of ECL allowance for financial asset:

IX. Financial liability and equity

X. Cash, Cash equivalents and bank balances

XI. Property, plant and equipment 

(c) Depreciation and Amortisation

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts shown separately under the head “Provisions”

shown separately under the head “Provisions” and not as a deduction 

from the gross carrying amount of the assets

Disclosure

Write-off 

Impaired loans and receivables are written off, against the related allowance for loan impairment on completion of the Company’s internal

processes and when the Company concludes that there is no longer any realistic prospect of recovery of part or all of the loan. For loans

that are individually assessed for impairment, the timing of write off is determined on a case by case basis. A write-off constitutes a de-

recognition event. The Company has right to apply enforcement activities to recover such written off financial assets. Subsequent recoveries

of amounts previously written off are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Type of Financial asset

Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

Equity 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity

instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. A conversion option that will be

settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is

an equity instrument. 

No gain/loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Cash, Cash equivalents and bank balances including fixed deposits, margin money deposits, and earmarked balances with banks are carried

at amortised cost. Short term and liquid investments being subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value, are not included as

part of cash and cash equivalents.

Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component and the Company cannot identify the ECL on the loan

commitment separately from those on the drawn component, the Company presents a combined loss allowance for both components

under “Provisions”.

Financial liabilities and equity Debt and equity instruments issued are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with

the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial liabilities 

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities

with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Company or a contract that will or may be settled in the

Company’s own equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Company is or may be obliged to deliver a variable

number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative contract over own equity that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a

fixed amount of cash (or another financial asset) for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Classification

The Company classifies its financial liability as “Financial liability at amortised cost” except for financial liability at Fair Value through Profit

and Loss (FVTPL).

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liability is recognised initially at cost of acquisition net of transaction costs and incomes that is attributable to the acquisition of the

financial liability. Cost equates the fair value on acquisition. Company may irrevocably designate a financial liability that meet the amortised

cost as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair value option).

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

(a) Tangible 

Tangible property, plant and equipment (PPE) acquired by the Company are reported at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any. The acquisition cost includes any cost attributable for bringing asset to its working condition net of

tax/duty credits availed, which comprises of purchase consideration, other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working

condition for their intended use. PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to

the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

(b) Intangible

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the

enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if

any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. Administrative and other general overhead expenses that are specifically

attributable to acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible assets. Expenses on

software support and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which such costs are incurred.

Depreciable amount for tangible PPE is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. 
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XII Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The company does not have any Defined Benefit/Contribution Plan, neither  any Long term Employee Benefit as such.

XIII Earnings per share

XIV Taxation

XV. Goods and Services Tax

The company does not deal in taxable goods and service under GST but the company pays Sitting Fees to its Directors which is liable to GST

under Reverse Charge Mechanism, hence the company is registered under Goods and Service Tax Act. Any GST input Tax credit is expensed

as per relevant accounting standard for the expenses.

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Other

Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, when they relate to items that are recognised in the respective line items.

Current Tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax

payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be

paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or

substantively enacted by the reporting date. Current tax asset and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the

recognised amounts and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of

assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Deferred

tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilized. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or

the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax

assets and liabilities on a net basis.

(d) De-recognition of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset

An item of PPE is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the

asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference

between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. An intangible asset is

derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-

recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are

recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is derecognised.

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are

recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated

absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the year in which the employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under: 

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future

compensated absences; and 

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing the profit after tax available for equity shareholders by the weighted average

number of shares outstanding during the year.Partly paid up shares are included as fully paid equivalents according to the fraction paid up.

Diluted earnings per share has been computed using the weighted average number of shares and dilutive potential shares, except where

the result would be anti-dilutive.

Depreciable amount for tangible PPE is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. 

Depreciation on tangible PPE deployed for own use has been provided on the straightline method as per the useful life prescribed in

Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of Buildings, Computer Equipment, Vehicles, Plant and Machinery, Software,

Licenses, Furniture and Fixture and Office Equipment in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed based on the nature of the

asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, etc. Depreciation method is

reviewed at each financial year end to reflect expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The

estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end with the effect of any change in the estimation of

useful life/residual value which is accounted on prospective basis. Depreciation for additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated

pro rata to the remaining period of use. Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the

revised carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining useful life. 

Intangible Assets are amortised over the estimated useful life during which the benefits are expected to accrue, while Goodwill if any is

tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet date. The method of amortisation and useful life are reviewed at the end of each accounting

year with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Amortisation on impaired assets is provided

by adjusting the amortisation charge in the remaining periods so as to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its remaining useful

life.
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XVI.

XVII.

XVIII. 

FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS (read with note 2(i)) 

The Company has adopted Ind AS as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with effect from April 1, 2019, with a transition date of

April 1, 2018. The Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 are the first financial statements, that the Company has prepared 

under Ind AS. For all years up to and including the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company prepared its Financial Statements in

accordance with Previous GAAP. 

The adoption of Ind AS has been carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. Ind AS 101

requires that all Ind AS standards and interpretations that are issued and effective for the first Ind AS financial statements be applied

retrospectively and consistently for all financial years presented. Accordingly, the Company has prepared Financial Statements which

comply with Ind AS for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2018, the date of transition to Ind

AS. 

In preparing these Ind AS Financial Statements, the Company has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101,

as in Note 3. The resulting difference between the carrying values of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements as at the transition

date under Ind AS and Previous GAAP have been recognised directly in equity (retained earnings or another appropriate category of equity).

Note 3 explains the adjustments made by the Company in restating its Financial Statements prepared under Previous GAAP, including the

Statement of Profit and Loss account for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2018 and as at March 31, 2019.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised only when:

(i) an entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and

(ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required

to settle the obligation; and

(iii) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of time value of money is

material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure

required to settle a provision is recognised only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

(i) a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of

resources will be required to settle the obligation; and

(ii) a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are

reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under

such contract, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from operating

activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

i. changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a noncash nature;

ii. non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign currency gains and losses, and undistributed profits of

associates and joint ventures; and

iii. all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not available for general

use as on the date of Balance Sheet.
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Note -9

Property, Plant and Equipments

Tangible Assets:

Office Equipment

Computer 2.02                    -           -                    2.02               -            -                   -           2.02           2.02             

Total 2.02                    -           -                    2.02               -            -                   -           2.02           2.02             

Tangible Assets:

Office Equipment

Computer 2.02                    -           -                    2.02               -            -                   -           2.02           2.02             

Total 2.02                    -           -                    2.02               -            -                   -           2.02           2.02             

Footnotes:

As at 

31.03.2021

As at 

31.03.2021

As at 

31.03.2020

As at 

31.03.2022

As at 

31.03.2021

Net Block

(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

2. The Company has asset only under the head Office Equipment  under Property, Plant and Equipment and hence other Heads as given in Schedule III Division 

III of Companies Act, 2013 has not been shown under Property, Plant and Equipment.

Particulars

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

As at 01.04.2020
Ind AS 

Transition

Additions/

Deductions

1. Useful lives of assets has been determined as per companies act 2013. No depreciation has been provided for the assets which are carried at or lower than its 

salvage value.

As at 31.03.2021
As at 

01.04.2020

Additions/

Deductions

Particulars

Gross Block Depreciation

As at 01.04.2021
Ind AS 

Transition

Additions/

Deductions
As at 31.03.2022

As at 

01.04.2021

Additions/

Deductions

As at 

31.03.2022
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Note: 4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

 As at March 31st, 

2022 

As at March 31st, 

2021
Cash on hand 85.89                        117.51                      

Balances with banks (in the nature of cash and cash equivalents) 15,083.19                 11,797.11                 
Total 15,169.07                11,914.62                

Note: 5 Loans

Amortised Cost
 At fair

value

through OCI 

Total Amortised Cost
 At fair

value

through OCI 

Total

(A)

i. Other Loans - Not Related to Company 52,236.40             -                             52,236.40               52,713.82                    -                             52,713.82                 

Total (A) 52,236.40             -                             52,236.40               52,713.82                   -                            52,713.82                

(B)Out of above

i. Unsecured 52,236.40             -                             52,236.40               52,713.82                    -                             52,713.82                 

Total (B) 52,236.40             -                             52,236.40               52,713.82                   -                            52,713.82                

(C )Out of above

(I) Loans in India

i. Others 52,236.40             -                             52,236.40               52,713.82                    -                             52,713.82                 

Total (C ) 52,236.40             -                             52,236.40               52,713.82                   -                            52,713.82                

Total 52,236.40             -                             52,236.40               52,713.82                   -                            52,713.82                

Note: 6 Investments

Amortised

Cost

Through

other

comprehens

ive income

Through

profit and

loss

 Total 
Amortised

Cost

Through

other

comprehens

ive income

Through

profit and

loss

 Total 

(A)

Equity instruments- Others (quoted) -                  -                       31,414.25             31,414.25                 -                           -                                4,669.00                   4,669.00                   

Equity instruments- Others (unquoted) -                  1,55,596.42        -                         1,55,596.42              -                           1,49,404.66                1,49,404.66             
Total -                 1,55,596.42       31,414.25             1,87,010.67              -                           1,49,404.66                4,669.00                   1,54,073.66             

no. of units  Amount no. of units  Amount 
(A) Investment 

     -Others:

              1. Investments in Equity Shares

           i.  (Valued at Fair Value throught OCI) (Unquoted)

BRG IRON & STEEL CO PVT.LTD* 3,05,46,667              0.00                         3,05,46,667                0.00                           

NAROTTAMKA COMMODITIES PVT LTD 681                            1,55,596.41            681                               1,49,404.66             

RABIRUN VINIMAY PVT.LTD* 68,20,500                 0.00                         68,20,500                    0.00                           

EJECTA MARKETING LTD -                             -                           -                                -                             

Total (i) 1,55,596.42            1,49,404.66             

         ii.  (Valued at Fair Value throught Profit or Loss) (Quoted)

MANGALAM INDUSTRIAL FINANCE LIMITED 50,75,000                 31,414.25               50,75,000                    4,669.00                   

Total (ii) 31,414.25               4,669.00                   

Less: Provision For  Demunition in value of Assets -                           -                             

Total (1 = i + ii) 1,87,010.67            1,54,073.66             

Total (A) 1,87,010.67            1,54,073.66             

(B)Out of Above

(a) Investment in India 1,87,010.67            1,54,073.66             

(b) Investment Outside India -                           -                            

Total (B)
Total -                             1,87,010.67            -                               1,54,073.66             

Footnotes:

Note: 7 Current Tax Assets

 As at March 31st, 

2022 

As at March 31st, 

2021

Tax Deducted at Source (Net of Provision) 783.96                      572.37                      

Deposit 20.90                        20.90                        
Total 804.86                      593.27                      

Note: 8 The Major Components of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2022  are as follows:  

 Opening 

Balance 

Recognised

/ Reversed 

Through Profit and 

Loss

 Recognised 

Directly in Equity 

Recognised

/ Reclassified 

from  Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Closing Balance

Deferred Tax Assets :-

(a)    Impairment loss allowance - Stage III                          -                               -                             -                             -                             -   

(b)    Impairment loss allowance - Stage I & II                               -                                  -                                  -                             -   

(c)    Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment

Deferred Tax Liabilities :-

(c)    Gain on Fair Valuation of Equity Instruments (Consolidated Gain) -                           -   

Deferred Tax Asset (net) - - - - - 

The Major Components of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2021  are as follows:  

 Opening 

Balance 

Recognised

/ Reversed 

Through Profit and 

Loss

 Recognised 

Directly in Equity 

Recognised

/ Reclassified 

from  Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Closing Balance

Deferred Tax Assets :-

(a)    Impairment loss allowance - Stage III

(b)    Impairment loss allowance - Stage I & II

(c)    Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment - -                           -                             -   - 

Deferred Tax Liabilities :-

(c)    Gain on Fair Valuation of Equity Instruments (Consolidated Gain)                               -                                   -   

Deferred Tax Asset (net) - - - - - 

Particulars

Particulars

Deferred Tax Asset (net)

Deferred Tax Asset (net)

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Particulars

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Particulars

* Brg Iron & Steel Co Pvt Ltd and Rabirun Vinimay Pvt Ltd Share's values has been reduced to zero, FV Gain through OCI in respect of these shares has been reversed and orignal cost as 

on 01/04/2018 has been debited to profit and loss as impairment loss.
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Note: 10(a) Provisions

 As at March 31st, 

2022 

As at March 31st, 

2021

Contingent provision against Stage 1 assets* 121.83                      123.02                      

Contingent provision against Stage 3 assets* -                             3,505.00                   

Provision of Loss Asset 3,505.00                   -                            

Total 3,626.83                   3,628.02                  

Note: 10(b) Other Non-Financial Liabilities
 As at March 31st, 

2022 

As at March 31st, 

2021

Professional Tax Payable 3.54                           4.42                          

TDS Payable -                             37.46                        

Liabilities For Expenses 31.00                        31.00                        
Total 34.54                        72.88                        

Note: 11 Equity Share Capital

 No of Shares Face Value Per Unit
 As at March 31st, 

2022 

As at March 31st, 

2021

a) Authorised:

Equity Share 7,98,05,000            10 7,98,050.00             7,98,050.00             

b) Issued Subscribed and Paid Up:

Equity Share 7,98,00,000            10 7,98,000.00             7,98,000.00             
Total 7,98,000.00             7,98,000.00             

c) Movements in equity share capital 

No of Shares Amount(Rs)

As at March 31st, 2021 7,98,00,000                7,98,000.00             

Increase during the year -                                -                             
As at March 31st, 2022 7,98,00,000                7,98,000.00             

f) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Number of Shares % Holding Number of Shares % Holding

70,37,300 8.82% 70,37,300 8.82%

43,56,807 5.46% - -                             

52,53,919 6.58% - -                             

1,70,49,850              21.37% 1,70,49,850                21.37%

f) Details of Shareholding of Promoter

Number of Shares % Holding Number of Shares % Holding
-                         1,600                         0.01% 1,600                           0.01%

-                         1,600                         0.01% 1,600                           0.01%

-                         19,80,000                 12.22% 19,80,000                    12.22%

-                         24,50,000                 15.12% 24,50,000                    15.12%

Note: 12 Other Equity

 As at March 31st, 

2022 

As at March 31st, 

2021

Special Reserve (RBI) 1,141.31                   535.92                      

General Reserve (Amalgamation Reserve) 1,61,134.33             1,61,134.33             

Retained Earnings (6,375.78)                  (8,798.56)                 

Fair Valuation of Equity Instrument (7,02,338.21)            (7,35,275.22)            
(5,46,438.35)            (5,82,403.53)            

 As at March 31st, 

2022 

As at March 31st, 

2021

Opening 535.92                      535.92                      

Addition during the year 605.40                      
Total 1,141.31                   535.92                      

 As at March 31st, 

2022 

As at March 31st, 

2021
Opening 1,61,134.33             1,61,134                   

Addition during the year -                             -                            
Total 1,61,134.33             1,61,134                   

 As at March 31st, 

2022 

As at March 31st, 

2021
Opening (8,798.56)                  (8,393.34)                 

Profit after tax during the year 3,026.98                   (431.29)                     

Add: Profit on Sale of Equity Instruments Fair Valued through OCI -                             -                            

Add : Provision for Doubtful Assets -                             -                            

Less: Contingent Provision for Standard Assets 1.19                           26.08                        

Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve (605.40)                     -                            
Total (6,375.78)                 (8,798.56)                 

 As at March 31st, 

2022 

As at March 31st, 

2021
Opening (7,35,275.22)            (7,46,378.00)            

Addition during the year 32,937.00                 11,102.79                 
Total (7,02,338.21)            (7,35,275.22)            

d) Fair valuation of Equity Instruments

Particulars

a) Special Reserve (RBI)

b) General Reserve (Amalgamation Reserve)

c) Retained Earnings

MEGHSHREE CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED 

Particulars

* The Company has made Stage I (Loan Assets) asset provision of  0.25% of Stage I assets AND Stage III (Loan Assets) asset provision of 100% of Stage III assets as of March 31, 2022 as specified by RBI 

Master Directions Master Direction DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 September 01, 2016.

d)  The Company has only one class of equity share having par value of Re 10/- per share. Each holder of Equity share is entitled to one vote per share.  In the event of liquidation of the 

company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The Distribution will be in proportion to 

the number of equity share held by the shareholders.

FABER TREXIM PRIVATE LIMITED

Particulars

31 March 2022
Particulars

SMILE SUPPLIERS PRIVATE LIMITED

MOREPLUS MERCHANTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Particulars

31 March 2021

Particulars

Statutory Dues

e) No equity shares have been issued for consideration other than cash.

(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

ANJAN KUMAR SIROHIA	

MAXXON TRADING AND FINVEST PRIVATE LTD

OASIS SYNTEX PVT.LTD	

31.03.2021
Name of the Promoter

31.03.2022
% Change

AJAY ANAND PUGALIA	
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Note: 13 Interest Income (Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

 For YE March 

31st, 2022 

 For YE March 

31st, 2021 

On Financial Asset measured at Amortised Cost 

  Interest on Loans 4,666.17            4,167.98            

Total 4,666.17            4,167.98            

Note: 14 Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes

 For YE March 

31st, 2022 

 For YE March 

31st, 2021 

a) Net gain/(loss) on investments at fair value through profit or loss

      i. On trading Portfolio

                 Investment -                      (2,259.56)           

                 Derivatives

                 Others

-                      

b) Others

c) Total Net gain /(loss) on Fair Value changes -                      (2,259.56)          

Fair Value Changes:

    Realised -                      

    Unrealised

    Total Net gain /(loss) on fair value changes -                      (2,259.56)          

Note: 15 Other Income

 For YE March 

31st, 2022 

 For YE March 

31st, 2021 

Write Off -                      1.00                    

Interest on IT Refund 49.25                  100.78               

Total 49.25                 101.78               

Note: 16 Employee Benefit Expenses

 For YE March 

31st, 2022 

 For YE March 

31st, 2021 

Salary and Wages 570.00               734.00               

Staff Walfare

Total 570.00               734.00               

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

      ii. On financial instruments designated at fair value through Profit or 

Loss
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Note: 17 Other Expenses

 For YE March 

31st, 2022 

 For YE March 

31st, 2021 

 Advertisement Expenses 36.76                  47.83                  

 Auditor's fees and expenses (Refer Note: 18) 41.30                  41.30                  

 Brokerage/Commission -                      420.00               

 FILM 11.80                  11.80                  

 Certification Fees 12.50                  22.50                  

 Demat Expenses 2.39                    0.03                    

 Depository Expenses 177.00               244.55               

 E-Voting Processing Fees 12.98                  12.98                  

 Interest on TDS/ Prof Tax /GST 0.32                    0.31                    

 Internal Audit Fees 5.00                    5.00                    

 Filing Fees 1.85                    3.00                    

 General Expenses 7.67                    8.93                    

 Legal and Professional Fees 119.47               382.68               

 Listing Fees 354.00               414.77               

 Postage & Courier 16.79                  13.82                  

 Printing & Stationery 12.90                  14.48                  

 Write off 250.03               -                      

 Rates & Taxes 2.50                    5.80                    

 Secretarial Audit Fees 15.00                  15.00                  

 Scrutnizer fee 6.00                    6.00                    

 Travelling Expenses 2.65                    6.10                    

 Registrar and Transfer Agent Fees 23.60                  23.60                  

 Website expenses 5.94                    7.01                    

Total 1,118.44            1,707.49            

Note: 18 Auditor's fees and expenses

 For YE March 

31st, 2022 

 For YE March 

31st, 2021 

Audit Fees 41.30                  41.30                  

Tax Audit Fees -                      -                      

Total 41.30                 41.30                 

Particulars

Particulars

(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)
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Note: 19 Financial instruments by category

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets

At Amortised Cost

Cash and Cash Equivalants 15,169.07            11,914.62            

Loans 52,236.40            52,713.82            

At FVTPL:

Investment in Equity (Quoted) 31,414.25            4,669.00              

AT FVTOCI:

Investment in Equity (Unquoted) 1,55,596.42         1,49,404.66        

Financial Liabilities

At Amortised Cost

Borrowings -                        -                        

(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are

recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2(iii) to the financial statements.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) is

determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all

significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted

equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3. 

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual 

funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing 

price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

Levels of Input used in Fair Levels of Input used in Fair Carrying

Amount

Carrying

Amount

61



Note: 20 Reconciliation of Expected Credit Loss as per Ind AS and IRACP

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms

Gross 

Carrying 

Amount as 

per Ind AS

Loss 

Allowances 

(Provisions) as 

required 

under Ind AS 

109

Net Carrying 

Amount

Provisions 

required as per 

IRACP norms

Difference 

between Ind AS 

109

provisions and 

IRACP norms

(1) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7) = (4)-(6)

Performing Assets
    48,731.40                        -                 48,731.40                         -                              -   

                  -                          -                               -                           -                              -   

Subtotal    48,731.40                        -                 48,731.40                         -                              -   

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Substandard                   -                          -                               -                           -                              -   

Doubtful

up to 1 year                   -                          -                               -                           -                              -   

1 to 3 years                   -                          -                               -                           -                              -   

More than 3 years                   -                          -                               -                           -                              -   

Subtotal for doubtful                   -                          -                               -                           -                              -   

Loss       3,505.00           3,505.00                             -                           -                  3,505.00 

Subtotal for NPA       3,505.00           3,505.00                             -                           -                  3,505.00 

                  -                          -                               -                           -                              -   

                  -                          -                               -                           -                              -   

                  -                          -                               -                           -                              -   

Subtotal                   -                          -                               -                           -                              -   

    48,731.40                        -                 48,731.40                         -                              -   

                  -                          -                               -                           -                              -   

      3,505.00           3,505.00                             -                           -                  3,505.00 
   52,236.40           3,505.00               48,731.40                         -                  3,505.00 

Asset classifica tion 

as per Ind AS 109

(2)

(As required by RBI Master Direction RBI/2019-20/170
DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020)

Standard
Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 3

Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments,

etc. which are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not

covered   under   current   Income Recognition, Asset 

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total

(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Stage 3
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Note: 21

As at March 31st, 

2022

As at March 

31st, 2021

 

-

- 

 

-

- 
 

-

- 

 

-

- 

 

-

- 

 

-

- 

-

31,414.25

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,669.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1 Quoted

2 Unquoted

1,55,596.42          1,49,404.66     

-                         -                    

    (i) Shares

          (a) Equity

          (b) Preference

Total

Asset Side:

2. Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (3) below] :

    (v) Others

Disclosure of details as required by RBI/DNBR/2016-17/44 i.e Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company –Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit

taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

4. Break up of Investments

(a) Secured

(b) Unsecured

3.  Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards asset financing 

activities
i) Lease assets including lease rentals

under sundry debtors:

(a) Financial Lease

(b) Operating Lease

ii) Stock on hire including hire charges

under sundry debtors

(a) Assets on hire 

(b) Repossessed assets

ii) Stock on hire including hire charges

under sundry debtors

(a) Assets on hire 

(b) Repossessed assets

Amount Outstanding at:

                                   Unsecured(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)

Current Investments:

1 Quoted:

     (i) Shares:

             (a) Equity

             (b) Preference 

    (ii) Debentures and Bonds 

    (iii) Units of Mutual Funds 

    (iv) Government Securities 

    (v) Others 

2 Unquoted:

       (i) Shares:

             (a) Equity

             (b) Preference 

    (ii) Debentures and Bonds 

    (iii) Units of Mutual Funds 

    (iv) Government Securities 

    (v) Others 

    (v) Others

    (i) Shares

Long Term Investments :

          (a) Equity

          (b) Preference

    (ii) Debentures and Bonds

    (iii) Units of Mutual Funds 

    (ii) Debentures and Bonds

    (iii) Units of Mutual Funds 

Particulars

Liabilities Side:

1. Loans and advances availed by the nonbanking financial company inclusive of interest accrued 

thereon but not paid :

(a) Debentures : Secured
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Note: 22 Related Parties disclosures as required by Ind AS 24:

a) List of Related Paties and Relationship:

Basant Kumar Sharma  :Death on 21.04.2022                                         

Bhavya Dhiman(Appointed w.e.f 11.05.2022)                                       

Priti Balodi(Resigned w.e.f 17.11.2020)                                                   

Romita SIngh(Resigned w.e.f 18.02.2021)                                               

Raksha Kumari (Appointed w.e.f 19.02.2021)                   

Sunil Gopi Chandra (Appointed w.e.f 20.05.2022)
Priya Sharma      (Resigned w.e.f 30.09.2021)

b) Details of transaction during the year (Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Relationship
For YE March 

31st, 2022

For YE March 

31st, 

2021

Key Managerial 

Personnel
300.00              260.00                 

300.00              260.00                 

Romita Singh -                    74.00                   

Priti Balodi -                    175.00                 

Raksha Kumari 180.00              30.00                   

Priya Sharma 90.00                195.00                 

270.00              474.00                 

Note: 23

Note: 24

Note: 25

Note: 26 Disclosures of various Ratios as required by Division III, Schedule III of The Companies Act, 2013 as revised on 24th March, 2021.

Particulars Variance Explanation

Tier I Capital

Tier II Capital

Total Capital (Tier I + Tier II)

Risk Wieghted Assets

Ratios:

1. Tier-I CRAR

[Tier I Capital/Risk Weighted Assets] 0.00                       
2. Tier-II CRAR

[Tier II Capital/Risk Weighted Assets] (0.14)                     

3. Total CRAR 

[{Tier I Capital + Tier II Capital)/Risk Weighted Assets] 0.00                       
4. Liquidity Coverage Ratio Not Applicable

Key Managerial 

Personnel

The Company has not recognised any Deferred Tax Assets on Unused Tax Losses and Fair Value of Investment as there is no probability and convicing other 

In the absence of necessary information with the company relating to the registration of suppliers under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006 the information required under the Act could not be complied and disclosed.

Provision for Gratuity is not made since Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 is not applicable on the company since the number of employees in our company is

below ten.

Basant Kumar Sharma

Director Remuneration:

Salary & Bonus

As at March 31st, 
2,51,561.65             

3,505.00                   

2,55,223.02             

0.99                          

0.01                          

1.00                          

As at March 31st, 2021
2,15,596.47                             

3,505.00                                  

2,19,297.38                             

0.98                                          

0.02                                          

1.00                                          

CFO cum Whole Time Director
CFO cum Whole Time Director

Managing Director

Managing Director

Company secretary

Company secretary

Company secretary

Key Management Personnel & Other Director:
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Note: 27

Note: 28

Note: 29

Note: 30

Financial risk management

Market risk:

Note: 32

Note: 33

Note: 34

Note: 35

As per our Report of even date. 

FOR R K KANKARIA & CO

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No : 321093E

Sd/- Sd/-
Shiwaginee 

Jaiswal

Sd/- Director

DIN: 08763022
CA. RAJESH KUMAR KANKARIA

(Partner)

M. No. : 082796 Sd/- Sd/-

Raksha KumariSunil Gopi Chandra

Dated: 27.05.2022 Company SecretaryChief Financial Officer

Place :Kolkata ACS :46084

UDIN:22082796AJTAGD5584

No proceedings have been initiated or is pending against the Company fold holding any benami property

Note: 31

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

Shree Securities Limited

Bhavya Dhiman

Managing Director

DIN:09542964

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the companies Act, 2013 as on the Balance Sheet date 

To the best of the knowledge and belief of the management, as on the date of balance sheet, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from

borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s), including foreign entities

("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company registered with the Reserve Bank of India. On account of it's business activities it is exposed to various

financial risks associated with financials products such as credit or default risk, market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and inflationary risk. However, the

Company has a robust financial risk management system in place to identify, evaluate, manage and mitigate various risks associated with its financial products

to ensure that desired financial objectives are met. The Company's senior management is responsible for establishing and monitoring the risk management

framework within its overall risk management objectives and strategies, as approved by the Board of Directors. Such risk management strategies and

objectives are established to identify and analyse potential risks faced by the Company, set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, periodically review

the changes in market conditions and assess risk management performance. Any change in Company's risk management objectives and policies needs prior

approval of it's Board of Directors.

Market risk is a form of systematic risk associated with the day-to-day fluctuation in the market prices of shares and securities and such market risk affects all

securities and investors in the same manner. These daily price fluctuations follows its own broad trends and cycles and are more news and transaction driven

rather than fundamentals and many a times, it may affect the returns from an investment. Market risks majorly comprises of two types - interest rate risk and

other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks include borrowings and investments

Previous year figures have been regrouped and re-arranged, wherever necessary, to confirm to the current year's classification

The Company does not have any transactions not recorded in books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year and

previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has not traded or invested in any crypto currency or virtual currency during the year and previous year.

There has been no fraud by the Company or on the Company during the year and previous year.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
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